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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

REPORT OF THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD {(INCORPCRATING THE STRATEGIC REPORT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The Board has pleasure in presenting #s report together with the audited consolidated financial staternents for the
year ended 31 March 2023.

Structure, Governance and Nanagement
Background

Key Housing Association Limited (hereafter referred to as "the Association”) is a Registered Social Landiord
incorporated under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, which provides housing and
support to people with disabilities. The Group refers o Key Housing Association Limited (KEY), Community
Lifestyles Limited {Community Lifestyles) and KHA Developments Limited (KHA).

Community Lifestyles provides individualised home and community support services to people with disabilities
mainly in housing not provided by the Association. Support services provided by KEY and Community Lifestyles
are funded through contracts with local authorities. Community Lifestyles is a registered charity and is limited by
guarantee. It remains under control of Key Housing Association Limited.

The principal activity of KHA is the redevelopment of housing which is used for the support of adults with
disablities. KHA is a limited company. It remains under control of Key Housing Association Limited, which holds
100% of the share capital of KHA.

Employee issues

The Group has an equal opportunities policy which seeks to ensure that, in its role as employer, landlord and
service provider, it does not discriminate against people on the grounds of sex, marital status, religion, sexual
orientation, age, disability, colour, race, nationality or ethnic or national origins.

In respect of health and safety and welfare at work, the Group has a health and safety policy and a training
programme covering a comprehensive range of relevant health and safety issues, including emergency aid and
moving and handling. The Group has a health and safety advisor role as well as a health and safety commitiee
for all office-based health and safety issues.

In employee relations, the Group recognises Trade Unicn representation for support service based and office-
hased employees and senior management meet regularly with Union representatives to discuss, and where
appropriate negotiate, relevant matters relating to the activities of the Group.

Objectives and activities

The Group's Board agrees objectives and strategies for the Group normally within a 3-5-year strategic ptan
timescale. Our current Strategic Plan was developed for the period 2020-2025 and is designed to reflect our
longer-term ambitions and allow for regular review and adaptation of our objectives in line with the ever-changing
environment. The plan also incorporates the long-term funding of the Group.

The plan consists of two main parts, reflecting Support Activity and Housing Activity, each containing a range of
strategies and targets designed to meet KEY’s objectives, and a Risk Analysis. The accompanying risk register is
reviewed regularly.

To support our activities the Group operates a policy framework which is reviewed and updated on an annual
basis. Areas of policy include Board confrol and responsibility, housing management, maintenance, develepment,
finance, and HR. These include the following specific policies:

Governance - Board Confrel and Accountability - Standing Orders and Code of Conduct, Pelicy on Gifts and
Hospitality, Policy on Payments, Benefits and Corporate Accountability, Policy on Disclosure of interest, Policy
for Payment of Board Member Expenses, Delegation of Authority from the Board, Complaini{s Procedure,
Membership Policy, Risk Management Strategy, Equal Opportunities Policy, Participation Policy, Health and
Safety Policy, Whistieblowing, Openness & Confidentiality, Sustainability, information and Communication
Technologies, IT Strategy, Data Protection, Insurances, Anti-fraud and Corruption, Media Guidelines,
Performance Measurements and Business Continuily Planning.
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Housing Management - Allocations Policies, Rent Policy, Arrears Policy, Estate Management Policy,
Harassment Policy, Voids Management Policy, Recovery of Charges, Sub-letting, Lodgers, Assignation,
Charging for Services, Legal Action, Abandonment, Furnished l.ets and Anti-Social Behaviour.

Maintenance - Maintenance Standards, Tenant Feedback on Repairs and Maintenance, Monitoring of
Emergency Repairs and Pre and Post inspections.

Development - Development Procurement, CDM Regulations and Building Defects.

Finance - Treasury Management Policy, Internal Audit, Charging for Services, Reserves and Purchasing and
Procurement.

Human Resources - Training, Staff Retirals, Criminal Convictions, Salaries, Support Through liness, Staff
Welfare, No Smoking, Redundancy and Grievance Policy.

The treasury management policy aims to ensure that the Group's funds are safeguarded and wisely invested, and
that loan finance is negotiated within parameters agreed by the Board.

The rent policy aims to achieve a committed rental income that enables the Association to offer a high-quality
management and maintenance service fo all tenants. The policy ensures that rents are viable, affordable and
sustainable in the local housing context.

The long-term stock maintenance and repair policy aims to maintain a cost effective, responsive and reactive
repair service to all tenants within the parameters of a 10-year strategic and 3-year implementation programme
for planned and major repairs. This is within a longer term 60-year major repair profile.

Achievements and performance

Key remain a well-respected and prominent provider in the social care sector. Our attention as we emerged from the
the pandemic remained on the safety and welibeing of the people we support and our staff and we have continued to
follow public health guidance, retaining specific health and safety measures for our workforce throughout the year.

The profile for our services remaing dominated by a strong commitment to Seif-directed Support, despite the
limited implementation across Scotland and we have continued to work closely with a number of local authorities
on increasingly individualised approaches to supporl. We see this as a very positive commitment to ensuring
people who need support can have as much control and choice as possible, and that support remains flexible and
responsive to their outcomes.

Our strategic plan sets out our intention to continue to deliver flexible, responsive, individual support and to
promete, develop and extend this approach in order to meet increased demand and complexity of need. We
have continued to extend our approach to people with dementia, autism, mental ill-health, and long-term
conditions as well as younger and older people.

We have also maintained a focus on supporting people with very complex needs, including those who previously
lived in hospital environments, to be supported in their own tenancies in the community. For example, this year, in
one local authority, we supported a number of people to move into their new houses which have been specifically
designed to increase independence through bespoke assistive technologies and housing adaptations. It is anticipated that
there will be further growth in this area next year.

At 31 March 2023, Key supported 1,507 people in 16 local authority areas with total direct support of 51,653 hours
per week. This is line with the position at 31 March 2022.

KEY employ 1,772 contracted staff (344 full time and 1,428 part-time) and on average a further 402 on a relief
basis. This compares to 1,819 contracted staff {320 full-time and 1,499 part-time)and on average a further 380 on
a relief basis as at 31 March 2022. Details regarding the average number of staff employed during the year is
included in note 9 of the financial statements.
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Having a flexible, positive and skilled workforce is the most essential element in sustaining our delivery of high-
quality personalised services. Difficulties in recruitment and a higher turnover of staff have been frequently cited
challenges for the sector and we have a employed a number of strategies to ensure we continue to be seen as a
good employer. Our new recruitment campaign, launched in January 2023, improved recruitment in some areas
and we have maintained our positive track record of retaining staff (our annual furnover has consistently remined
fower than the sector average).

Outcomes from our staff satisfaction survey were very positive with 95% of respondents saying they were proud to
work for KEY.

We continued to invest in resources and initiatives to support staff throughout the year and increased the number
of Mental Health First Aiders across Scotland. And we retained our focus on staff training, increasing the number
face-to-face opportunities for learning as well as maintaining our remote and virtual inputs. KEY also continued to
develop ils work as an accredited SVQ centre, with a focus on management qualifications, to progress
accreditation in accordance with the requirements of the Scottish Social Services Councit and retained a "High
Confidence’ rating from the SQA gain this year.

During the year to 31 March 2023, additional funding was made available to Social Care providers from local
authorities to ensure that all social care staff were being paid at least the Real Living Wage per hour. This
resulted in increases to funding across all local authority areas which in turn allowed a salary increase for all staff,
backdated to 1 April 2022.

We have continued making progress in adopting digital technologies and remote ways of working with Teams and
Microsoft 365 offering ways of communicating and engaging with colleagues across Scotland.

Our partnership with TAG continues to go from strength to strength and this year TAG facilitated four regional
consultation events with people we support and their families. These sessions were dasigned to explore how people
felt they had been supported through the panhdemic and consider their views on our support relating to human rights
principles (being respected and listened to, having choice and control and being fully involved). 100% of people who
attended knew how to raise a concern about their support of make a complaint and were confident in doing so.

Eight of our Branches were inspected by the Care Inspectorate for the first time since before the pandemic. All were
awarded grades of good or very good for the quality theme related to supporting people's wellbeing.

Key Housing activity has been reestablished with a full repairs and replacement program in place and a plan to re-
engage tenants in-person through the My Home group after a pause during the pandemic. We have continued to
identify opportunities to work with others to increase the supply of leased properties and a cluster of housing has been
developed in the North of Scotland this year in parthership with a developer and NHS Highland.
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Financial review

Key Housing Association Limited generated a surplus of £615,098 (2022 - £7,939,063) and had reserves of
£21,447 307 (2022 - £21,655,421). Included in other comprehensive income was £823,163 of an actuarial loss
£022 - £4,366,000 actuarial gain) to give tolal comprehensive income of {£208,085) (2022 — £6,305,063). This
has been a more challenging financial year for KEY. The cost of living crisis has had an impact on our workforce
and Key responded by awarding a one-off additional payment to support workers with associated one-off
expenditure. At the same time, inflationary pressures have had an impact on our costs and staffing shortages
have resuited in increased use of agency staff with an associated financial premiums.

In order to mitigate the risk in relation to the Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme (SHAPS), the
Association closed the defined benefit scheme on 1 April 2014 with all members transferring to the defined
contribution scheme. Further details regarding SHAPS can be found in note 22 of the financial statements. The risks
associated with the pension scheme, and how these are managed, are included within principal risks and
uncertainties detailed below.

KEY continued to meet obligations to support staff in terms of both Real Living Wage, and latterly Scottish
Government requirements and were able to secure additional funding during the year to enable salary increases
to all staff.

Community Lifestyles has continued to focus its work in Glasgow, providing highly individualised support to people
with often very complex needs. The net income for the year {o 31 March 2023 for Community Lifestyles Limited
was £279,584 (2022 - £445,4186). Included in other comprehensive income was £35,041 of an actuarial loss (2022
- £84,000 of an actuarial gain} in respect of SHAPS to give total comprehensive income of £244,543 (2022 -
£5629,416). Community Lifestyles Limited has reserves of £7,956,826 as at 31 March 2023 (2022 - £7,712,283).
As at 31 March 2023, Community Lifestyles supported 421 people with total direct support of 15,818 hours per
week.

There was no financial activity in the year for KHA Developments Limited as it was dormant from 1 April 2020,
The Group's surplus for the year was £894 682 {2022 - £2,384,479) with reserves of £29,404,133 (2022 -
£29,367,704). Included in other comprehensive income was £858,204 of an actuarial loss (2022 - £4,450,000
actuarial gain)} to give total comprehensive income of £36,478 (2022 - (£6,834,479).

Value for money

KEY continue to monitor value for money across all areas of housing and support activity.

The main elements of these initiatives are described below:

Central services and costs

We underfake regular reviews of expenditure, such as telecommunications, insurance, cleaning services and printing
and stationery. We review our procurement strategy regularly to ensure that maximum savings are achieved, and
in line with regulatory requirements supplies/services over £50,000 are advertised on the Public Contracts
Scotland website. Cost savings have however been offset by inflationary increases during the year in some areas.
Head office costs

Cur offices have returned to normal following covid although most office-based staff can take advantage of a

blended approach with some home working. This has resuited in some cost savings however again these have
been offset by inflationary cost increases during the year in some areas.
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Support service activity

Following Covid, the funding of our support services has returned to fully spot purchased arrangements with
funding based on agreed levels of support or individual budgets for self directed support arrangements. A number
of local authorities monitor actual support delivery and adjust funding accordingly.

Issues with staff recruitment in the social care sector have resulted in an increased use of external agency staff
in some of our services to ensure that we can deliver essential support. This has resulted in some additional
expenditure and although separately funded in a small number of support arrangements, more generally has had
a negative impact on our financial performance. Other local service costs have also been affected by cost
increases.

The integrated management system (Evolve} is used across all of KEY local services as well as Community
Lifestyles Limited. This assists with the monitoring of deployment, staffing costs and direct support delivery. Evolve
continues to provide increased efficiency with directlinks to payroll.

Evolve is now critically important to our operations and is a particular focus of our business continuity arrangements.
As such we have developed a detailed plan fo develop a successor to Evolve in Microsoff Dynamics which will provide
long term sustainability for this system. We are also in the process of developing a new HR database.

We continue fo monitor and review our central and local service management structures and make efficiencies
where possible. In Glasgow we continue to operate a consortium arrangement between the Association and
Community Lifestyles Limited, with co-location of management teams at Kerr Street. This enables a more strategic and
efficient approach to service management and development and underpins our continued success on the Glasgow
Framework. This consortium is ranked highly on the Glasgow framework. KEY has also been successful in a
number of other framework agreements throughout the year which cover both local authorities with existing
services as well as new areas.
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Statement on internal financial control

The Board is responsible for keeping proper books of account with respect to the Association’s and Group's
transactions and its assets and liabilities, and for maintaining a satisfactory system of control over the
Association’s and Group's books of account and transactions. The Board is also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Association and Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.

The Board acknowledges its ultimate responsibility for ensuring that the Association and Group has in place a
system of control that is appropriate to the various business environments in which it operates. These controls
are designed to give reascnable assurance with respect to:

)] the reliability of financial information used within Association or Group or for publication;
i) the maintenance of proper accounting records; and
iii) the safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposition.

It is the Board's responsibility to establish and maintain systems of internal financial control. Such systems can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material financial misstatement or loss. Key elements
of such systems are:

i) Formal policies and procedures to restrict the unauthorised use of the Association's or Group’s assets;

i) Experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for important business functions;

iii) Forecasts and budgets are prepared which allow the Members of the Board to monitor the key business
risks and financial objectives, and progress towards financial plans set for the year and the medium term.
Managements accounts are prepared and significant variances from budget are investigated as
appropriate;

iv)  Major business risks and the financial implications are identified and monitored;

v) All significant new initiatives, major commitments and investment projects are subject to formal
authorisation procedures by the Board;

vi}  The appointment by the Board of an internal auditor to carry out a programme of internal audit of the
Association’s and Group's policies and control systems;

vi)  The Board reviews reports from management, the internal auditor and external auditor to provide
reascnable assurance that the control procedures in place are being followed; and

(viii} Formal practices have been established for instituting appropriate action to correct weaknesses identified
from the reports of the external auditor and internal auditor.

The Members of the Board have reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control in existence in the
Association and Group for the year ended 31 March 2023. In the opinion of the Members of the Board, no
weaknesses were found in the internal controls which would result in material loss, contingencies, or uncertainties
requiring disclosure in the financial statements or the auditor’s report.
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Going concern

After making enquiries, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of at least fwelve months after the date
on which the report and financial statements are signed. The Board receive regular cash flow and financial reports
during the year to enable an informed assessment to be made. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going
concern basis in the financial statements.

Plans for future pericds

Our strategic plan for 2020-2025 sets out our intention to continue to deliver flexible, responsive, individual support
and to promote, develop and extend this approach in order to meet increased demand and complexity of need.

The main objectives within the Strategic Plan for support activity for KEY are as follows:

1. To deliver high guality personalised support and innovative housing solutions
2. To increase opportunities for citizenship, inclusion, and participation

3. To have a skilled, committed, creative and well-supported workforce

4. To be a collaborative partner

For each objective there is a range of strategies and targets detailing how the objectives are to be achieved, with
timescales. The drivers of these sirategies include our continued commitment to Self-directed Support, the
development of more innovative and creative supports, hetter engagement and more opportunity for the workforce
and increased colflaboration with others.

The vision set out by the Independent Review of Social Care {published in 2021) supports these strategies however
progress in achieving the associated recommendations has been limited.

The National Care Service (Scetland) Bill was introduced by the Scottish Government in June 2022 and was
described as the most significant reform to public services since the creation of the NHS. However there are major
concerns with the proposals, not least that the financial memorandum significantly underestimates the costs of
National Care Service. The Scottish Government have since confirmed a delay to the scrutiny process to help build
consensus and parliamentary consideration of the Bill will not take place until next year — almost a year-on from the
original timeline.

In the meantime, we will continue to maintain our focus on the initiatives in our plan which will help people live good
lives of their choice, and ensure our workforce is valued for the work they do. Our focus on community connecting,
harnessing digital sclutions, collaboration, and inclusion are approaches which will support our vision-that people
can stay in their own homes and communities, surrounded by people who care about them and living the life of their
choice.

For KEY's Housing activity, the Housing Strategic Plan reflects the following objectives:

Objective 1
To achieve a housing service that meets individual needs and enables housing choice.

Objective 2
To achieve a service that provides housing that is well managed and maintained.

Objective 3
To achieve a housing service that is adequately funded.

We continue to work with our local authority partners to explore options for securing new housing, particularly for
people with very complex needs who have requirements for assistive technology and spectalist housing adaptations.
This year we entered into a lease agreement for new build accommodation for six people with complex needs in
Hightand (where KEY is also the support provider) and we are exploring a further partnership with the same developer
in another local authority.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group is committed to ensuring that it responds to, and manages, any challenges that may impact on the
organisation, and recognises that a certain amount of risk is inevitable if the organisation is to achieve its priorities.
A risk management framework is in place to assist with taking informed decisions regarding the risks that impact
on Association’s priorities, whether Strategic or Operational.

Principal risks identified through the Association’s strategic risk register which have the potential to seriously affect
the performance, future prospecis or reputation of the Association are detailed betow along with mitigating actions
being taken by the Association. These risk areas were reassessed and updated during 2022/23.

In terms of Group wide risks, the main risks identified are;

Risk Actions to mitigate
Board not equipped to control Regular review of Board profile and performance.
organisation Comprehensive delegation guidelines.

Clear remits for Audit Committee.
System of Review Groups, and regular in-house training

programme.
Board unable to guide organisation Board meetings held mainly in-person with option for members to
through the pandemic attend and participate via remote access.

Agendas audited fo foous scrutiny and business on key risk areas.

Adequate number of Board members to ensure quorum.
Reviewed/updated delegation guidelines which allow for effective
decision making during this period (including if the CEO falls ilf}.
Regular briefings to the Board to ensure effective maonitoring and
oversight.

Failure to mest regulatory requirements SHR requirements regularly reviewed and measures/arrangements in
place to ensure compliance.

Head of Housing coordinating returns and notifications as required.

Operational Manager in regular contact with Care Inspeciorate relationship
manager and coordinating reporting and nofificationrequirements.

Health and Safety Personnel reviewing and coordinating information
from the HSE.

Failure to meet regulatory requirementsof New SHR Framework introduced and Board aware of
SHR requirements.

Comprehensive self- assessment of compliance against SHR
Regulatory Framework with annual review.

Governance session training on Regulatory responsibilities
provided annually.

Pension scheme deficit grows; or lossof Following the 2018 scheme revaluation, concessionary payments have
income inhibits capacity to meet deficit been agreed covering payments from April 2020 to February 2025. This
will however be reviewed if the recovery plan is subjectio change.

Assets (housing stock) revaiued in 2016 to meet future liability onbalance
sheet.
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Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)

Risk Actions to mitigate
IT systems inadequate to meet Purchase of additional laptops and telephones for Homeworking
needs/system overload/ breakdown arrangements.

ICT resource/need reviewed weekly by senior management team

Evolve support/development team in place and regular project
management maetings.

Accelerated implementation of emails accounts for the workforce.
Project team approach to systems development.

Specialist IT staff and Network Manager in post.

Business Continuity Team includes all sections, with full IT support.

Comprehensive redevelopment of Evolve and in-house ability to

host and maintain the system.

N Increased access controls are in place since move to Microsoft 365.
increased cyber security risks

Email protection service in place.

Staff awareness raised and training in
place

Cyber Essentials Accredifation achieved

Failure to meet requirements of SPSO Regular review of compliance introduced.

Complaints Handling Procedures

Failure ko meet Health and Safety Comprehensive Health and safety Policies and Procedures to ensure risks
statutory requirements are assessed and necessary action faken.

Fulitime H&S Advisor role
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Principal risks and uncertainties {continued)

For Support activity:

Risks Actions to mitigate

Workforce Non-support staff working hybrid arrangements since 2022.

?n?l%itiil\)fiilti{yand Management Development Program in place to assist local management teams to
provide fair and responsive support
A focus on staff wellbeing and mental health. 80 Mentat Health First Aiders now in
place
Good communication systems.
Social media strategy and regular CEO communication to thank staff.Supportive
management, with regular professional supervision.

Overstretched Continual review of management resources (including admin support) in localservices

services/! insufficient
resources to support
managers

through deployment meetings.

Clear oversight of reduced services and regular reporting of any changes.
Evolve reconfigured to allow managers to share staff capacity.
Deployment monitoring meetings happening 4-weekly.

Testing of key workers in place in every local authority.

Comprehensive policies, procedures and training.
Serious incident reporting system and follow up.

Access fo independent counselling.

Developing quality assurance systems in line with new National Care Standards.

Codes of Conduct distributed to all workers and used as a basis for initial andongoing
professional development.

Procedures and fraining
against abuse are
inadequate to keep people
safe

Updated guidance provided to keep people safe and well provided regularly.

Comprehensive guidance on Adult Protection is included in initial training for support workers
and managers.

Whistleblowing policy.

Codes of Conduct distributed to all workers.

Respect and Protect materials distributed to all services.

Zero tolerance of abuse emphasised in training and in professional practice expectation.

Financial Internal audit programme, and management checks, to back up rigorous Financial
Procedures.

Monitoring of policies, and procedures and practice, by managers.

10
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

For Support activity (continued)

Health and Safety training
and audit inadequate to
keepworkers and service
users safe

Comprehensive Health & Safety policies/ procedures updated and published,
Update Health and safety training included in management induction programme,
FT H&S training officer.

Comprehensive H & S training programme embedded in ITP.
Clear guidelines for Risk Assessment.

Whistieblowing policy.

Serious incident analysis.

Use of accredited Behavioural Support Strategy (BSS).

Comprehensive Covid-18 information and guidance

Recruitment difficulties

Recruitment working group established and new campaign launched 2023
Accelerated Recruitment Strategy in place and on-line application introduced.

Rigorous recruitment process with competency framework being developed.
Competitive terms and conditions in our sector.
Local approaches lo recruitment where appropriate.

Review of contracts and work/life balance approaches.

Lasing financial
viability

Regular deployment analysis, budget review and operational reviews.
Quarteriy reports on service funding and development to Board.

Positive attitude to controlled growth.

Intensive Housing Management funding to be maintained.

Losing services/not
winning/missing
tenders

Ensuring sufficient staff resources to progress tender processes and a co-ordinated
approach to tender submissions.

Regular review of service costs/profile and planning to adjust costs where required(including
management structures and time).

Registered with Public Contracts Scotland tender notification service.

11
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Principat risks and uncertainties {continued)

For Support activity (continued)
Other areas of inherent risk that are being given particular focus in our strategic priorities are:

Ensuring our workforce is well support, developed and rewarded;
Ensuring our support remains relevant, community based and in line with current and future expectations;
and

» Being able to evidence improved outcomes for the people we support, for evidence based self-
assessment and tendering.

For Housing activity:
In our Housing activity, the main risk areas relate to compliance with the Social Housing Charter and related
reporting requirements from the Scottish Housing Regulator, with which we must ensure compliance, and the

introduction of welfare reform.

The main risks and actions to mitigate these are as follows:

Risks Actions to mitigate
Poor satisfaction rating from tenants | Range of mechanisms in place including annual satisfaction survey,
on quality of service received establishment of tenant engagement group and regular

consultations as required (for example on rent increases).
Overall focus on tenant satisfaction in all activity.

Failure to meet requirements of Reporting requirements now captured and routine systems in
Social Housing Charter and place. SHR carried out a partial data verification audit in 2017
associaled reporting requirements which highlighted no issues.

Failure to consider rental affordability | Rent setting policy has comparability and affordability as key factors
to be considered. Majority of stock classified as supported
accommodation in benefits terms.

Housing stock fails to meet needs of | Active housing remodeling programme taken forward over last 15
tenants, without long term flexibility years but there remain a small number of larger shared properties
of use with no active proposals to change. Whilst meeting the needs of the
current tenants this will be reviewed should this positiocn change
and/or appropriate funding is available,

12
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Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)
Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities

Housing Association legislation requires the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Association and of the income and expenditure
of the Group and the Association for the year ended on that date. In preparing those financial statements the
Board are required {o:-

«  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»  State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

e Prepare the financial statements on a geing concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the Association will continue in business; and

» Prepare a statement on internal control.

The Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and the Asscciation and to enable it to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community
Benefits Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 19869, the Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Determination
of Accounting Requirements 2019. The Board is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
the Association and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

To the knowledge and belief of each of the persons who are members of the Board at the time this report is
approved:

+ 8o far as each Board member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the auditor is
unaware; and

s+ Hefshe has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Member of the Beard in order to make
him/her aware of any relevant audit information, and to establish that the auditor is aware of that
information.

Auditor

The Key Group is in the process of re-tendering the external audit. This process will be completed by the time of
the AGM and a resolution will be put to the members in respect of the appointment of the auditor.

By order of the Board

Qudecon

Andrea Wood
Secretary

Date: 23 August 2023
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Key Housing Association Limited (the "Parent Association”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group") for the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise the Consolidated and Association
Statements of Comprehensive income, the Consolidated and Association Statements of Changes in Capital and
Reserves, the Consolidated and Association Statements of Financial Position, the Consclidated and Association
Statements of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of ireland’ {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion, the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and Parent Association’s affairs as at 31 March 2023
and of the Group’s and Parent Association's income and expenditure for the year then ended;

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Co-operative and Community Benefit
Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefits Societies {Group Accounts) Regulations
1969, Part 6 of the Housing (Scotland} Act 2010 and the Determination of Accounting Requirements 2019
issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)}) and applicable
faw. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and the Parent Association in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Board’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to evenis or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s or the Parent Association’s
ahilityto continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements
are authorised for issue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Board with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board is responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Other information {continued)

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Co-operative and Community
Benefit Societies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our cpinion:

» asatisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained by the Parent Association; or
+ the Parent Association has not kept proper accounting records; or

+ the Parent Association’s financial statements are not in agreement with the books of account; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we need for our audit.

Responsibilities of the Board

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Board’s Responsibilities set out on page 13, the Board is responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the Board determine is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board is responsibie for assessing the Group's and the Parent
Association’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intend to liquidate the Group or the
Parent Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with {SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities is availabie on the Financial Reporting Counci's website at:
www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above and on the FRC's website, to detect material misstatements in
respect of irregularities, including fraud.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

We obtain and update our understanding of the Group and the Parent Association, their activities, their control
environment, and likely future developments, including in relation to the legal and regulatory framework applicable
and how the Group and the Parent Association are complying with that framework. Based on this understanding,
we identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive {o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. This includes consideration of the risk of acts by the Group and
the Association that were contrary to applicable laws and reguiations, including fraud.

Our approach to identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including
non-compliance with laws and reguiations, was as follows:

» the engagement partner ensured that the engagement team collectively had the appropriate competence,
capabilities and skills to identify or recognise nen-compliance with applicable laws and regulations;

» we identified the laws and regulations applicabie to the Group and the Parent Association through
discussions with the Board members and the senior management team, and from our knowiedge and
experience of the RSL. sector,;

+ we focused on specific laws and regulations which we considered may have a direct material effect on
the financial statements or the operations of the Group and the Parent Association, including the Co-
operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, the Co-operative and Community Benefils Societies
(Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, Part 6 of the Housing {Scotland) Act 2010, the Determination of
Accounting Requirements 2019 issued by the Scotlish Housing Regulator, and taxation, data protection,
anti-bribery, employment, environmental and health and safety legislation;

» we assessed the extent of compliance with the laws and regulations identified above through making
enguiries of the senior management team and the Board and inspecting legal correspondence; and

s identified laws and regulations were communicated within the audit team regularly and the team remained
alert fo instances of non-compliance throughout the audit.

In response to the risk of irregularities and non-compliance with laws and regulations, we designed procedures
which included, but were not limited to:

+ agreeing financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation;

» reading the minutes of meetings of the Board and relevant sub-committees;

s enquiring of the sentor management team and the Board as to actual and potential litigation and claims;

s reviewing legal and professional fees paid in the year for indication of any actual and potential litigation
and claims; and

» reviewing correspondence with HMRC, the Scottish Housing Regulator, OSCR and the Group’s and
the Parent Association's legal advisors.

We assessed the susceptibility of the Group’s and the Parent Association’s financial statements to material
misstatement, including obtaining an understanding of how fraud might occur, by:

¢ making enquiries of the senior management team and the Board as to where they considered there was
susceptibility to fraud, their knowledge of actual, suspected and alleged fraud; and

s considering the internal controls in place {o mitigate risks of fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations.

To address the risk of fraud through management bias and override of controls, we:

+ performed analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships;

+ tested journal entries to identify unusual transactions;

+ assessed whether judgements and assumptions made in determining the accounting estimates were
indicative of potential bias; and

» investigated the rationale behind significant or unusual transactions.

16



KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk
increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected
in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Association’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 87 of the Co-
operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the Parent Association’s members, as a body, those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibifity to anyone
other than the Parent Association and the Parent Association’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

ﬁ?,o") /‘\ual F -S‘lfd:u—e,—)

Azets Audit Services
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Titanium 1

King's Inch Place
Renfrew

PA4 8WF

Date: 1’3’ August 2023

Azets Audit Services is eligible for appointment as auditor of the Group and Parent Association by virtue of its
eligibility for appointment as auditor of a company under section 1212 of the Companies Act 20086.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR TC THE BOARD OF KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED ON INTERNAL
FINANCIAL CONTROL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

In addition to our audit of the Financial Statements, we have reviewed your statements on page 6 concerning the
Association’s compliance with the information required by the Regulatory Standards in respect of internal financial
control contained within the publication “"Our Regulatory Framework” and associated Regulatory Advisory Notes
which are issued by the Scotiish Housing Regulator.

Basis of Opinion

We carried out our review having regard {o the requirements on corporate governance matters within Bulletin
2009/4 issued by the Financial Reporting Council. The Bulletin does not require us to review the effectiveness of
the Association's procedures for ensuring compliance with the guidance notes, nor to investigate the
appropriateness of the reason given for non-compliance.

Opinion

In our opinion the Statement on internal financial control on page 6 has provided the disclosures required by the
relevant Regulatory Standards within the publication “Our Regulatory Framework™ and associated Regulatory
Advisory Notes issued by the Scoftish Housing Regulator in respect of internal financial control and is consistent
with the information which came to our attention as a result of our audit work on the Financial Statements.

Through enquiry of certain members of the Members of the Board and Officers of the Association and examination
of refevant documents, we have satisfied ourselves that the Board's Statement on internal financial control
appropriately reflects the Association’s compliance with the information required by the relevant Regulatory
Standards in respect of internal financial control contained within the publication “Our Regulatory Framework” and
associated Regulatory Advisory Notes issued by the Scottish Housing Regulator in respect of internal financial
control.

Azets Avdt Services

Azets Audit Services
Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
Titanium 1

King's Inch Place
Renfrew

PA4 8WF

Date: 2% August 2023

Azets Audit Services is eligible for appointment as auditor of the Group and Parent Association by virtue of its
eligibility for appointment as auditor of a company under section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Notes 2023 2022
£ £
Turnover 4 83,922,838 77,866,506
Operating expenditure 4 (82,970,7786) (75,287,934)
Operating surpius 4,8 952,062 2,578,572
Interest receivable and other income 11 47,255 13,730
Interest payable and simitar charges 1 (96,572) (228,566)
Movement in market value of investments 16 (8,063) 20,743
Surplus before fax 894,682 2,384,479
Taxation 12 “ -
Surplus for the year 894,682 2,384,479
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial (loss¥gain in respect of pension scheme 22 (858,204) 4,450,000
Total comprehensive income for the year 36,478 6,834,479

The results for the year relate wholly to continuing activities.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Members of the Board on 23 August 2023
and were signed on its behalf by:

Quxece L [Py \}*M

Andrea Wood John Paterson Angus Turner
Secretary Vice - Chairperson Vice-Chairperson - Appeals




KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Notes 2023 2022
£ £
Turnover 5 65,659,532 60,980,837
Operating expenditure 5 (64,964,993) (58,843,938)
Operating surplus 58 694,539 2,136,899
Interest receivable and other income 11 25,194 7,987
Interest payable and similar charges 11 (96,572) {226,566)
Movement in market value of investments 16 (8,063) 20,743
Surpius before tax 615.098 1.939.063
Taxation 12 - -
Surplus for the year 615,008 1,939,063
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial {loss)/gain in respect of pension scheme 22 (823,163) 4,366,000
Total comprehensive {expenditure}/ income for the year (208,065} 6,305,063

The results for the year relate wholly to continuing activities.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Members of the Board on 23 August 2023
and were signed on its behalf by:

Andrea Wood John Paterson Angus Turner
Secrefary Vice - Chairperson Vice-Chairperson - Appeals




KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Share Revenue Total
Capital Reserve Reserves
Note E £ £
Balance at 1 April 2022 274 29,367,430 29,367,704
Total comprehensive income for the year - 36,478 36,478
Shares cancelled during the year 24a (51) - (51)
Shares issued in the year 24a 2 - 2
Balance at 31 March 2023 225 29,403,908 29,404,133
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Share Revenue Total
Capital Reserve Reserves
Note £ £ £
Balance at 1 April 2021 287 22,532,951 22,533,238
Total comprehensive income for the year - 6,834,479 6,834,479
Shares cancelled during the year (13) - {13)
Shares issued in the year - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 274 29,367,430 29,367,704

The notes form part of these financial statements.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Share Revenue Total
Capital Reserve Reserves
Note £ £ £
Balance at 1 April 2022 274 21,655,147 21,655,421
Total comprehensive income for the year - (208,065) (208,085)
Shares cancelled during the year 24a (51) . (51)
Shares issued during the year 24a 2 - 2
Balance at 31 March 2023 225 21,447,082 21,447,307
ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AS AT 31 MARCH 2022
Share Revenue Total
Capital Reserve Reserves
Note £ £ £
Balance at 1 April 2021 287 15,350,084 15,350,371
Total comprehensive income for the year - 6,305,063 6,305,063
Shares cancelled during the year {13) - {(13)
Shares issued during the year - - -
Balance at 31 March 2022 274 21,655,147 21,655,421

The notes form part of these financial statements.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Notes 2023 2022
£ £
Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties 13 14,727,982 15,106,023
Other fixed assets 14 3,933,511 4,083,733
18,661,493 19,189,756
Current assets
Debtors 15 8,443,572 8,769,770
Stock 12,096 48,053
Investmenis 16 1,172,224 1,175,594
Cash and cash equivalenis 17 14,983,606 14,758,207
24,611,498 24,751,624
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 18 (10,626,846) (10,272,207}
Net current assets 13,984,652 14,479,417
Total assets less current liabilities 32,646,145 33,669,173
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 19 {526,012) (684,255)
Pension — defined benefit liability 22 {2,716,000) (3,717,214)
Net assets 29,404,133 29,367,704
Capital and reserves
Share capital 24a 225 274
Revenue reserve 24b 29,403,908 29,367,430
29,404,133 29,367,704

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Members of the Board on 23 August 2023

and were signed on its behalif by:
ﬁ}L [ v
a)vj/(): .

John Paterson Angus Turner
Vice - Chairperson Vice-Chairperson - Appeals

Andrea Wood
Secretary

Regulated number: 1938R(S)

The notes form part of these financial statements.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

Notes 2023 2022
£ £

Tangible fixed assets
Housing properties 13 14,727,982 15,106,023
Other fixed assets 14 2,150,016 2,242,160
16,877,998 17,348,183

Current assets

Debtors 15 7,494,819 7,187,222
Stock 12,096 48,0563
Investments 16 543,450 551,514
Cash and cash equivalents 17 7,109,685 8,287,299
18,160,050 16,074,088
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 18 (7,386,729) (7,481,595)
Net current assets 7,773,321 8,692,493
Total assets less current liabilities 24,651,319 25,940,676
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 19 {526,012) {584,255)
Pension — defined benefit liability 22 (2,678,000) (3,701,000}
Net assets 21,447,307 21,655,421

Capital and reserves
Share capital 243 225 274
Revenue reserve 24h 21,447,082 21,655,147
21,447,307 21,655,421

2N

o fore

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Members of the Board on 23 August 2023 and were
signed on its bebhalf by:

&Qﬁi)@\
Andrea Wood John Paterson Angus Turner
Secretary Vice - Chairperson Vice-Chairperson - Appeals

Regulated number: 1938R(S)

The notes form part of these financial statements.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

CONSOCLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Payments to acquire and improve housing stock

Purchase of other property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds received from disposal of current asset investments

Interest paid
Repayment of borrowings

{Deposit to}/withdrawal from current asset investments

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes form part of these financial statements,

(i) Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash

Investments - deposit accounts

Borrowings

Debt due within one year
Debt due after one year

Total

Notes 2023 2022
£ £
25a 516,018 580,979
(125,896) (81,280)
{61,082) (78,726)
2,199 9,068
47,255 13,730
{137,524) (137,208)
- 20,674
(20,572) (37,568)
{127,830) (416,592)
{4,693) 504,777
(153,095) 71,293
225,399 515,064
14,758,207 14,243,143
14,983,606 14,758,207
At1 April  Cash flows Other non- At 31 March
2022 cash 2023
changes
£ £ £ £
14,758,207 225,399 - 14,983,606
14,758,207 225,399 - 14,983,606
624,081 4,693 - 628,774
(132,970} 132,970 (56,758) {56,758)
(299,505) {5,140) 56,758 (247,887)
{(432,475) 127,830 - {304,645)
14,949,813 357,922 - 15,307,735
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

ASSOCIATION STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Payments to acquire and improve housing stock

Purchase of other property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Interest received

Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds received from disposal of current asset investments

Interast paid
Repayment of borrowings

Net change in cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes form part of these financial statements.

(i} Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash

Borrowings

Debt due within one year
Debt due after one year

Total

Notes 2023
£

25b (894,465)

(125,896)
(36,244)
2,199
25,194

(134,747)

(20,572)
(127,830)

{148,402)
(1,477,614)
8,287,299

7,109,685

At 1 April Cash Other non-
2022 flows cash
changes
£ £ £
8,287,299  {1,177,614) -
8,287,299  (1,177,614) -
(132,970) 132,970 {56,758)
{299,5085) (5,140) 56,758
{432,475) 127,830 -
7,854,824  (1,049,784) -

2022
£

297,585

(81,280)
(51,382)
9,068
7,987

{115,607)

20,674
(37,566)
(416,592)
(433,484)
(251,496)
8,538,795

8,287,298

At 31 March
2023

£
7,109,685

7,108,685

(56,758)
(247,887)

(304,645)

6,805,040
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATENENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1. General information

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice} and comply with the requirements of the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014,
the Co-operative and Community Benefits Societies (Group Accounts) Regulations 1969, Part 6 of the
Housing (Scotland) Act 2010 and the Determination of Accounting Requirements 2019 issued by the Scottish
Housing Regulator. The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies
(see note 3).

The presentation currency is pounds sterling, and the financial statements are rounded to the nearest whole
number.

The Association is a Co-operative and Community Benefit Society limited by shares and is incorporated in
the United Kingdom. The Association is a registered social landlord in Scotland and its registered number
is HEP141. The registered address is available on the first page of the financial statements.

The Association is defined as a public benefit entity and thus the Association complies with all disclosure
requirements relating to public benefit entities.

2, Principal accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, subject to the revaluation
of certain fixed assets, and in accordance with applicable accounting standards. However, please note that
on transition to FRS 102, an existing use value was used as deemed cost for housing properties.

The effect of events relating to the year ended 31 March 2023, which occurred before the date of approval of
the financial statements by the Board have been included in the statements to the extent required to show a
true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of the results for the year ended on that date.

Basis of consolidation

These financial statements consolidate those of Key Housing Association Limited and its subsidiary
undertakings, Community Lifestyles Limited and KHA Developments Limited (dormant from 1 April 2020),
drawn up to 31 March 2023 as obliged by statute. Surpluses or deficits on intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full.
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2. Principal accounting policies {(continued)
Turnover

Association

Turnover represents rental income earned in the period and grants of a revenue nature from local authorities
and the Scottish Government for the provision of support services in the period which are recognised in line
with the provision of the service.

income from rental and service charges is recognised when the Association is entitled to i, it is probable it
will be received, and it can be measured reliably.

Community Lifestyles Limited

All incoming resources are included in the Statement of Financial Activities when the charitable company
is entitled to the income and the amount can be quantified with reasonable accuracy. The following specific
policies are applied to particular categories of income:

* Allincome is included in the Statement of Financial Activities when the charitable company is entitied
to the income after any performance conditions have been met, it is probable that the income will be
received, and the amount can be measured reliably.

« Investment income is included when receivabie.

KHA Developments Limited
This company was dormant during the current and prior year.

Going concern

The Board expect the Association and the Group to generate a surplus in 2023/24 and 2024/25 and the
Boardis satisfied that the Association and the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence forthe foreseeable future, being a period of twelve months after the date on which the report and
financial statements are signed. For this reason, the financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis which presumes the realisation of assets and liabilities in the normal course of business.

Government Capital Grants

Government Capital Grants, at amounts approved by The Scottish Government or local authorities, are
paid directly to the Group as required to meet its liabilities during the development process. This is treated
as a deferred Government capital grant and is released to income in accordance with the accrual model
over the useful life of the asset it relates to on completion of the development phase. The accrual model
requires the Group to recognise income on a systematic basis over the period in which the Group
recognises the related costs for which the grant is intended to compensate.

28



KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2. Principal accounting policies (continued)
Government Revenue Grants
Government revenue grants are recognised using the accrual model which means the Group recognises
the grant in income on a systematic hasis over the period in which the Group recognises the related costs
for which the grant is intended to compensate.
Non-government capital and revenue grants
Non-government capital and revenue grants are recognised using the performance model. If there are no
performance conditions attached the grants are recognised as revenue when the grants are received or

receivable.

A grant that imposes specific future performance related conditions on the recipient is recognised as
revenue only when the performance related conditions are met.

A grant received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a liability.
Interest receivable

Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest
method.

Interest payable

Finance costs are charged fo the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the term of the debt using the
effective interest method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue
costs are initially recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital instrument.

Operating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Housing properties are stated at deemed cost based on an Existing Use Value at 1 April 2014. From this

date, housing properties have been accounted for under historical cost. The cost of properties includes land
cost, all construction costs, professional fees, and development administration costs.

| The Group separately identifies the major components which comprise its housing properties, and charges
| depreciation, so as to write off the cost of each component to its estimated residual value, on a straight line
basis, over its estimated useful economic life.

The Association depreciates the major components of its housing properties over the following years with
the corresponding annual rates:

Land Not depreciated
Buildings 50 years (2%)
Kitchens 18 years (5.56%)
Bathrooms 20 years (5%)
Heating systems 15 years (6.67%)
Roof structure and coverings 50 years (2%)
Windows 25 years (4%)

No depreciation is charged on assets during the course of construction.
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2.

Principal accounting policies (continued)
Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is charged on
the following basis:

Motor vehicles - 20% - 33% per annum straight iine method
Office Accommodation - 2.5% per annum straight line method
Office Equipment
- Equipment and Furniture 10% per annum reducing balance method
- Computer Equipment 25% per annum reducing balance method
- Photocopier - 20% per annum reducing balance method
Wemyss Bay Lodge - 3.33% per annum straight line method

Depreciation is charged on these fixed assets from the year of purchase, but no charge is made in the year
of disposal.

Investments

Quoted investments are included in the financial statements at market vaiue which is defined as mid-price.
Debtors

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment.

Rental arrears

Rental arrears represent amounts due by tenants for rental of social housing properties at the year end.
Rental arrears are reviewed regularly by management and writlen down to the amount deemed
recoverable. Any provision deemed necessary is shown alongside gross rental arrears in Note 15.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without penaity on
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature in no more
than three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
with insignificant risk of change in value.

Creditors

Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities, including bank loans,
are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial insfruments

The Group only enters into basic financial instruments transactions that result in the recognition of financial
assets and liabilities like trade and other accounts receivable and payable and loans from banks.

Debt instruments (other than those wholly repayable or receivable within one year), including loans and
other accounts receivable and payable, are initially measured at the present value of the future cash flows
and subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2. Principal accounting pclicies (continued)
Financial instruments {continued)

Debt instruments that are payable or receivable within one year, typically trade payables or receivables,
are measured, initially and subsequently, at the undiscounted amount of the cash or other consideration,
expected to be paid or received. However if the arrangements of a short-term instrument constitute a
financing transaction, like the payment of a rental arrear deferred beyond normal Group terms or financed
at a rate of interest that is not a market rate or in case of an out-right short-term loan not at market rate, the
financial asset or liability is measured, initially, at the present value of the future cash flow discounted at a
market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument and subsequently at amortised cost.

Financial assets are derecognised when contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire, or when
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognised only once the liability has been extinguished through discharge,
cancellation, or expiry.

Loans

Mortgage loans are advanced by private institutions and local authorities under the terms of individual
mortgage deeds in respect of each property or housing development. Advances are only available in
respect of those developments which have been given approval for by the Scottish Government.

Investments in subsidiary

The investment in the subsidiary, KHA Developments Limited, is stated at cost, less any provisions required
where there has been a permanent diminution in their value.

Retirement benefits (note 22)

The Group and the Association participates in The Scottish Housing Associations' Defined Benefits Pension
Scheme (SHAPS) and retirement benefits to employees of the Group and Association are funded by the
contributions from all participating employers and employees in the scheme. Payments are made in
accordance with periodic calculations by consulting actuaites and are based on pension costs applicable
across the various participating entities taken as a whole.

The SHAPS is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme and as such the amount charged to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income in respect of pension costs and other post retirement benefits is the estimated
regular cost of providing the benefits accrued in the year, adjusted to reflect variations from that cost. The
interest cost is included within other finance costs/income. Actuarial gains and losses arising from new
valuations and from updating valuations to the reporting date are recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income.

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets held separately from the Association in separate
trustee administered funds. Full actuarial valuations, by a professionally quatified actuary, are obtained at
ieast every three years, and updated to reflect current conditions at each reporting date.

The pension scheme assefs are measured at fair vatue. The pension scheme liabilities are measured using
the projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of return on a high quaiity corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency. A pension scheme asset is recognised on the Statement of Financial Position
only to the extent that the surplus may be recovered by reduced future contributions or to the extentthat the
trustees have agreed a refund from the scheme at the reporting date. A pension scheme liability is
recognised to the extent that the Association has a legal or constructive obligation to settle the liability.

The defined benefit scheme was closed to future accrual on 1 April 2014.
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2, Principal accounting policies (continued)
Defined Contribution Scheme

The Group and the Association also participates in defined contribution schemes with SHAPS and with
Standard Life. The pension costs charged against operating profits are confributions payable to the
respective scheme in respect of the financial year.

Reserves

in line with recommended practice, the reserves which had been previously designated for specific
purpeses are no longer disclosed separately within the financial statements. These included reserves for
major repairs and future trading commitments as well as other smaller reserves. The Group and the
Association continue to internally monitor these sums.

3. Judgements in applying policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions which
affect reported income, expenses, assets, and liabilities, Use of available information and application of
judgement are inherent in the formation of estimales, together with past experience and expectations of
future events that are believed {o be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results in the future could
differ from such estimates.

The members of the Board consider the following to be critical judgements in preparing the financial
statements:

- The categorisation of housing properties as property, plant, and equipment in line with the
requirements of the SORP; and

- The amount disclosed as ‘operating surpius’ is representative of activities that would normally be
regarded as ‘operating'.

The Board are satisfied that the accounting policies are appropriate and applied consistently. Key sources
of estimation have been applied as follows:

Estimate Basis of estimation

Valuation of Housing Properties Housing Properties are held at deemed cost which
is based on an existing use valuation at the date
of transition of 1 April 2014. The assumptions used
in the existing use value were reviewed and are
considered reasonable.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment The useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are based on the knowledge of senior
management at the Association, with reference {o
expected asset life cycles.

The main components of housing properties and The cost of housing properties is split into

their useful lives separately identifiable componenis. These
components were identified by knowledgeable
and experienced staff members and based on
costing models.

Recoverable amount of rental and other trade Rental arrears and other trade receivables are

receivables reviewed by appropriately experienced senior
management team members on a case by case
hasis with the balance outstanding together with
the payment history of the individual tenant being
taken into account.
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3. Judgements in applying policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimate Basis of estimation
The obligations under the SHAPs pension This has relied on the actuarial assumptions of a
scheme qualified actuary which have been reviewed and

are considered reasonable and appropriate.

investments at market value This has relied on the valuation prepared by
investment managers as at the year end.

4. Particulars of turnover, operating expenditure and operating surplus - Consolidated
Operating Operating Operating
Turnover expenditure surplus surplus
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Affordable lettings (note 6) 6,203,360 5,668,517 534,843 751,291
Other activities (note 7a) 77,719,478 77,302,259 417,219 1,827,281
Total 2023 83,922,838 82,970,776 952,062
Total 2022 77,866,506 75,287,934 m
5. Particulars of furnover, operating expenditure and operating surplus —~ The Association
Operating Operating Operating
Turnover expenditure surplus surplus
2023 2023 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Affordable lettings (note 6) 6,203,360 5,668,517 534,843 761,291
Other activities (note 7b) 59,456,172 59,296,476 159,696 1,385,608
Total 2023 65,659,532 64,964,993 694,539
Total 2022 60,980,837 58,843,938 2,136,899
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KEY HOUSING ASSOCIATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

8. Operating Surplus

Operating surplus is stated after:
Depreciation:

- property

- other fixed assets

- loss on disposal of components

l.oss on disposal of fixed assets

External auditor's remuneration exc VAT:

- external audit services

Internal auditor’s remuneration:
- internal audit services
Operating lease costs:

- motor vehicles

- land and buildings

9. Remuneration

Board members are not remunerated.

Consolidated

2023
£

482,656
208,247
21,281

861

35,500

16,286

70,958
349,839

2022
£

478,162
212,652
11,844

16,385

29,335

14,983

76,633
335,972

Association
2023 2022
£ £

482,656 478,162
125,331 139,775
21,281 11,944

861 16,385

22,500 20,000

12,586 11,283

70,958 76,533
349,839 335,972

The number of employees in the year whose emoluments (excluding pension contributions) exceeded

£60,000 were as follows:

More than £60,000 but not more than £70,000
More than £70,000 but not more than £80,000
More than £80,000 but not more than £90,000
More than £80,000 but not more than £100,000
More than £100,000 but not more than £110,000
More than £110,000 but not more than £120,000

2023 2022

-y o= N S
e e N |

Total emoluments paid to employees whose emoluments (excluding pension contributions)

exceeded £60,000 were as follows:

Emoluments of those earning > £60,000

Salary
Pension contributions

Consolidated Association
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
858,751 829,217 858,751 828,217
38,336 36,948 38,336 36,948
897,087 866,165 897,087 866,165
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9,

Remuneration {(continued)

The Association considers key management personnei to be the Board and the senior management team
of the Association as detailed on the first page of the accounts under Executive Officers.

Key management emoluments Consolidated Association
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Salary 442,332 428,836 442,332 428,836
Employers’ national insurance 55,082 52 900 55,082 52,900
Pension contributions 19,957 18,323 19,957 19,323
517,371 501,059 517,371

501,059

The emoluments excluding pension contributions of the highest paid director who is the Chief Executive
were £112,082 (2022 - £110,829).

The Chief Executive is an ordinary member of the Scottish Housing Association Pension Scheme
{(SHAPS) as described in note 22, No enhanced or special terms apply to membership. The Chief
Executive had no personal pension arrangements. Pension contributions in respect of the Chief Executive
amounted to £5,008 (2022 - £4,949).

Consolidated Association

2023 2022 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

Expenses paid to members of the Board 356 75 356 75
Staff costs (including Directors’ emoluments) during the year:

Wages and salaries 65,927,667 67,933,388 50,822,986 47,707,271

Saocial security costs 6,449,126 5,490,837 4,887,512 4,180,277

Pension costs 1,303,269 1,232,742 1,024,853 968,692

Pension costs — Past service scheme
expenses 62,609 62,609 61,777 61,777
73,742,671 68,719,576 56,797,128 52,918,017

In addition to expenditure on direct salaries, the group incurred £2,812,761 (2022 - £728, 796) expenditure on
the use of agency staff. For KEY this was £2,343,624 (2022 - £651,276).
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9. Remuneration {continued)

The average weekly number of persons employed and the full time equivalent (FTE) was as follows:

2023

average
weekly
Nos

Head Office 99
Services 2,647

2,746

2023

average
weekiy
Nos

Head Office 99
Services 2,096

2,195

Consolidated
2022

average
Weekly

Nos

100
2,730

2,830

Association
2022
average
Weekly

Nos

100
2,158

2,258

2023 2022
FTE FTE
Nos Nos

92 93
2,153 2,220
2,245 2,313
2023 2022

FTE FTE
Nos Nos

92 23
1,638 1,689
1,730 1,782

10. Creditor payments

The group policy is to pay purchase invoices at the end of the month following receipt. On average,
invoices are paid within 30 days (2022 - 30 days) of receipt.

11.  Interest receivable and payable

Interest receivable and similar income

Bank deposit interest
Union commission

Interest payable and similar charges:

Bank loans and other loan
Defined benefit pension liability — interest
charge (note 22)

Consolidated Association

2023 2022 2023 2022

£ £ £ £
45,461 11,740 23,400 5,097
1,794 1,990 1,794 1,990
47,255 13,730 25,194 7,987
(20,572) (37,566) (20,572) (37,566)
(76,000) {191,000} (76,000) {189,000}
{96,572) (228,566) {96,572) {226,566)
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12. Taxation
Group
The Association and Community Lifestyles Limited have charitable status and thus no corporation tax is
due from their charitable activities (2022 - £nif).
KHA Developments Limited did not frade during the year so no tax is payable.
Association
The Association has charitable status and thus no corporation tax is due from is charitable activities.
13.  Fixed assets ~ Housing Land and Buildings — Consolidated and Association
2023 2022
£ £
Cost
At 1 April 2022 18,518,303 18,455,374
Additions 125,896 81,280
Disposals {37,343) (18,351)
At 31 March 2023 18,606,856 18,518,303
Property Depreciation
A1 April 2022 3,412,280 2,940,525
Charge for the year 482,656 478,162
Disposals (16,062) (6,407)
At 31 March 2023 3,878,874 3,412,280
Net Book Value at 31 March 2023 14,727,982 15.106.023

Total cost of components capitalised for the year amounted to £125,896 (2022 - £81,280). The amount
spent on maintenance of housing properties held for letting can be seen in Note 6.

Additions to Housing Properties during the year includes £nil capitalised interest (2022 - £nify and £nil
capitalised administration costs (2022 - £nif). All housing properties are freehold. Properties with a cost of
£nil (2022 - £nif) and accumulated depreciation of £nil (2022 - £nil) have been disposed in the year.
Components with a cost of £37,343 (2022- £18,351) and accumulated depreciation of £16,062 (2022 -
£6,407) have been disposed of for £nil (2022 - £nif) net proceeds,

The housing properties were revalued as at 1 April 2014 by Graham & Sibbald Limited and this value was
used as the deemed cost from that date in accordance with FRS 102.

Included in freehold housing properties is land with a historic cost allocation of £1,615,500 (2022 -
£1,615,500).
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14. Fixed Assets — Other - Consolidated

Office
Motor Office Wemyss Accomm-
Vehicles Equipment Bay Lodge odation Total
£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 April 2022 143,349 652,317 132,227 4,542,791 5,370,684
Additions - 61,082 - - 61,082
Disposals (14,805) {9,689) - - {24,494)
At 31 March 2023 128,544 603,710 132,227 4,542,791 5,407,272
Depreciation
At 1 April 2022 120,100 270,179 30,856 865,816 1,286,951
Charge for year 10,174 71,619 4,408 122,046 208,247
Disposals (14,805) {6,632) - - (21,437)
At 31 March 2023 115,469 335,166 35,264 987,862 1,473,761
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2023 13,075 268,544 96,963 3,554,929 3,933,511
At 31 March 2022 23,249 282,138 101,371 3,676,975 4,083,733
Fixed Assets — Other - Association
Office
Motor Office Wemyss Accomm-
Vehicles Equipment  BayLodge odation Total
£ £ £ £ £
Cost
At 1 April 2022 143,349 350,719 132,227 2,488,646 3,114,941
Additions - 36,244 - - 36,244
Disposals (14,805) {9,689) - - (24,494)
At 31 March 2023 128,544 377,274 132,227 2,488,646 3,126,691
Depreciation
At 1 Aprit 2022 120,100 161,611 30,856 560,214 872,781
Charge for year 10,174 48,503 4,408 62,246 125,331
Disposals (14,805) (6,632) - - (21,437)
At 31 March 2023 115,469 203,482 35,264 622,460 976,675
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2023 13,075 173,792 96,963 1,866,186 2,150,616
23,249 189,108 101,371 1,828,432 2,242,160

At 31 March 2022
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15. Debtors: falling due within one year

Consolidated Association
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
Rent arrears 92,878 146,688 92,878 148,688
Less: provision for bad debts {32,809) {25,563) {32,809) (25,563)
Arrears for rent and service charge 60,069 121,125 60,069 121,125
Other debtors and prepayments 857,666 773,101 695,221 629,051
Local authority revenue grant
receivable 7,525,837 7,875,544 5,568,349 6,343,841
Amounts owed by subsidiary
undertakings - - 1,171,180 93,205
8,443,572 8,769,770 7,494,819 7,187,222
16. Investments
Consolidated 2023 2022
£ £
Quoted investments (see below) 543,450 551,513
Balances held in deposit accounts (> 3 months) 628,774 624,081
1,172,224 1,175,594
Association 2023 2022
£ £
Investment in subsidiary undertaking:
- KHA Developments Limited 1 1
Quoted investments (see below) 543,450 551,613
543,451 551,514

Key Housing Association Limited owns 1 ordinary £1 share in KHA Developments Limited (SC341478).
The investment is held at cost. This represents a 100% shareholding in KHA Developments Limited, a
company registered in Scotland, whose principal activity is that of acting as the design and build subsidiary
of Key Housing Association Limited. There was no financial activity in the year for KHA Developments
Limited. The net liabilities at 31 March 2023 were (£1,040) (2022: (£1,040)).

Key Housing Association Limited has 100% control over its subsidiary undertaking Community Lifestyles
Limited, a company limited by guarantee whose principal activity is the support of adults with learning
disabilities. KEY is the only member of Community Lifestyles Limited and approves the appointment of
the directors of Community Lifestyles Limited. Community Lifestyles Limited made a surplus of £279,584
(2022 — £445,416) for the year ended 31 March 2023. Included in other comprehensive income was
an actuarial loss of £35,041 (2022 - actuarial gain of £84,000) in respect of SHAPS to give total
comprehensive income of £244,543 (2022 - £529,416). Community Lifestyles Limited has reserves of
£7,956,826 as at 31 March 2023 (2022 - £7,712,283).
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16. Investments (continued)

The Group and Key Housing Association Limited have guoted investments held via James Hay as follows:

Quoted investments
Market value at 1 April 2022
Movement in market value
Divested in current year

Market value at 31 March 2023

The following investments represent over 5% of the portfolio:

Legal and General UK Index C Inc.
l.egal and General US Index Trust C Inc.

l.egal and General European Index Trust C Inc.
M&G UK Inflation Linked Cerporate Bond | Inc.

M&G Strategic Corporate Bond | Inc.

17. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash - Current account
Cash equivalents - Deposit accounts (< 3
months)

18. Creditors: falling due within one year

Bank loans (note 20)

Trade creditors

Pension creditor

Other creditors

Social security and other taxes

Accruals and deferred grant income
Prepayments of rent and service charge
Amounis due to subsidiary undertakings
Deferred Government capital grant (note
21)

Consolidated Consolidated Association Association
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
551,513 551,444 551,513 551,444
(8,063) 20,743 {8,063) 20,743
- (20,674) - (20,674)
543,450 551,513 543,450 551,513

Value at 31
March 2023 % Holding
£
81,489 15%
70,215 13%
76,373 14%
48,006 9%
39,353 7%
Consolidated Association
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
13,317,395 13,098,334 5,969,563 7,151,954
1,666,211 1,659,873 1,140,122 1,135,345
14,983,606 14,758,207 7,109,685 8,287,299
Consolidated Association

2023 2022 2023 2022

£ £ £ £
56,758 132,970 56,758 132,970
59,048 48,321 59,048 48,321
435,108 480,520 379,516 402,183
3,638,180 3,360,358 1,883,914 1,947,937
1,311,039 1,295,491 989,041 973,501
4,955,580 4,859,951 3,791,108 3,805,493
164,508 87,971 164,508 87,971
- - 56,211 76,594
6,625 6,625 6,625 6,625
10,626,846 10,272 207 7,386,729 7,481,595
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19.

20.

21,

Bank loans {note 20)

Deferred Government capital grant {note

21)

Loans: Consolidated and Association

Total bank loans outstanding:

Payable in one year or less
Payable within one to two years
Payable within two to five years
Payable over five years

Less: payable within one year

Total bank loans due after one year

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Consolidated Association

2023 2022 2023 2022

£ £ £ £
247,887 299 505 247,887 299 505
278,125 284,750 278,125 284,750
526,012 584,255 526,012 584,255
2023 2022

£ £

56,758 132,970

59,180 77,498

188,707 167,845

- 54 162

304,645 432 475

(56,758) (132,970}

247,887 299,505

Bank loans are secured by a fixed charge over ceriain properties of the Association. The loans are
repayable in equal monthly instalments and are secured over 25 or 30 years. The highest rate of interest
payable during the year was 5.76% and the lowest 1.4%.

The net book value of housing properties secured at the year-end was £5,180,363 (2022 - £8,952,598).

Deferred capital grants: Consolidated and Association

Gross grant
At 1 April 2022
Grants received in year

At 31 March 2023

Amortisation of grant
At 1 April 2022
Amortisation

At 31 March 2023

Net grant at 31 March 2023

Payable in one year or less
Payable within one to two years
Payable within two to five years
Payable over five years

Total

2023 2022

£ £
331,246 331,246
331,246 331,246
39,871 33,246
6,625 6,625
46,496 39,871
284,750 291,375
6,625 6,625
6,625 6,625
19,875 19,875
251,625 058,250
284,750 291,375

43



KEY HOUSING ASSCCIATION LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FCR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

22,

Retirement benefits
Defined benefit scheme

Key Housing Association Limited and Community Lifestyles Limited participate in the Scottish Housing
Associations’ Pension Scheme {the “Scheme”). The Scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme
which provides benefits to some 150 non-associated employers. The Scheme is funded.

The Scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which came into force
on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions Regulator and Technical
Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding defined
benefit occupationai pension schemes in the UK.

The Scheme offers six benefit struclures to employers, namely:

Final salary with a 1/60th accrual rate;

Career average revalued earnings with a 1/60th accrual rate;

Career average revalued earnings with a 1/70th accrual rate;

Career average revalued earnings with a 1/80th accrual rate;

Career average revalued earnings with a 1/120th accrual rate contracted in; and
Defined Contribution.

An employer can elect to operate different benefit structures for their active members (as at the first day
of April in any given year) and their new entrants. The DC option can be introduced by the empioyer on
the first day of any month after giving a minimum of three months' prior notice.

Key Housing Association Limited and Community Lifestyle Limited have elected to operate the Defined
Contributions Option for existing and new entrants. The defined benefit scheme was closed to future
accrual on 1 April 2014. However, the Association and Community Lifestyles Limited are still required to
fund the past service deficit liability in respect of the defined benefit scheme.

There was an additional annual employer past service deficit contribution of £1,935,417 (net of
administration costs) (2022 - £1,936,277) made in the year ended 31 March 2023 for the Group
including £1,922,163 (2022 - £1,910,541) for the Association. This includes an additional payment of
£458,787 following the out-turn for year ending 31 March 2022 and in accordance with the agreement
with SHAPS.

The Trustee commissions an actuarial valuation of the Scheme every three years. The main purpose of
the valuation is to determine the financial position of the Scheme in order to determine the level of future
contributions required, so that the Scheme can meet its pension obligations as they fall due.

The last triennial valuation of the Scheme was performed as at 30 September 2018. The valuation
revealed a deficit of £121m. A recovery plan has been put in place to eliminate the deficit which will run
to 30 September 2022 for the majerity of employers, although certain employers have different
arrangements.

The Scheme is classified as a 'last man standing arrangement'. Therefore, the Association is potentially
liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to meet their share of
the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the Scheme. Participating employers are legally required to
meet their share of the Scheme deficit on an annuity purchase basis on withdrawal from the Scheme.
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22. Retirement benefits (continued)
Defined benefit scheme {continued)

The SHAPS defined benefit pension liabifity is accounted for as a defined henefit pension scheme. In
accordance with FRS 102 section 28, the operating and financing costs of pension and post retirement
schemes (determined by TPT) are recognised separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Service costs are systematically spread over the service lives of the employees and financing costs are
recognised in the period in which they arise. The difference between actual and expected returns on assets
during the year, including changes in the actuarial assumptions, is recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income.

Group
Present values of defined benefit obligation, fair value of assets and defined benefit liability

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£000 £000
Fair value of plan assets 45,129 65,074
Present value of defined benefit obligation {47,845) {68,791)
Defined benefit liability to be recognised (2,716) (3,717)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation

Year ended Year ended

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£000 £000

Defined benefit obligation at start of period 68,791 73,273

Current service cost - -

Expenses 63 63

Interest expense 1,889 1,536

Actuarial (gains)/losses due to scheme experience {2,34%) 2,008
Actuarial (gains)flosses due to changes in

demographicassumptions {1,174) 236

Actuarial (gains) due to changes in financial assumptions {17,278} {5,326}

Benefits paid and expenses (2,097) {2,999}

Defined benefit liability at the end of the period 47,845 68,791
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22.

Retirement benefits (continued)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

Year ended

31 March

2023

£'000

Fair value of plan assets at start of the period 65,074

Interest income 1,813
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in interest

income) — {loss)/gain (21,657)

Contributions by the employer 1,996

Benefits paid and expenses (2,097)

45,129

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

Defined benefit costs recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended
31 March
2022

£000

63,360
1,345

1,368
2,000
(2,999)

65,074

Period from

31 March

2021 to

31 March

2023

£000

Current service cost -

Admin expenses 63

Net interest expense 76
Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of

Comprehensive Income 139

Defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest cost) — (loss)/gain

Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities — gain/(loss)
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying

the present value of the defined benefit obligation — gain/{loss)

Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the
present value of the defined benefit obligation — gain

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income
~ actuarial (loss)/gain

Year
ended
31 March
2023
£000

(21,657)
2,349

1,174

17,276

(858)

Period from
31 March
2021 to

31 March
2022

£000

63
191

254

Year
ended

31 March
2022
£000

1,368
(2,008)

(236)

5326

4,450
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22. Retirement benefits {continued)

Fund allocation for employer’s calculated share of assets

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

£°000 £000

Glohal Equity 1,191 12,867
Absotute Return 815 2,984
Distressed Opportunities 1,388 2,333
Credit Relative Value 1,721 2088
Alternative Risk Premia 261 2,688
Fund of Hedge Funds -
Emerging Markets Debt 349 2422
Risk Sharing 3,290 2122
Insurance-Linked Securities 1,256 1,364
Property 1,879 1,686
Infrastructure 4,862 4,062
Private Dabt 2,015 1,637
Opportunistic IHiquid Credit 1,995 2,157
High Yield 228 632
Cpportunistic Credit 3 227
Cash 189 181
Corporate Bond Fund 59 4113
Liquid Credit 2 417
Long Lease Property 1,513 1,875
Secured Income 3,018 3,476
Over 15 Year Gilts - 27
Liability Driven Investment 19,109 15,746
Current Hedging 101 (238)
Net Current Assets 85 208
Total Assets 45,129 65,074

The main financial assumptions used by the Scheme Actuary, TPT, in their FRS 102 calculations are as follows:

Assumptions as at 31 March 2023 31 March 2023

% per annum % per annum

Key Housing Community

Association Lifestyles

Discount rate 4.89% 4.86%

Infiation (RPI) 3.2% 3.19%

Inftation (CPI) 2.72% 2.77%

Salary growth 3.72% 3.77%
Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement 75% of 75% of

maximum maximum

allowance allowance
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22. Retirement benefits (continued)
The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2023 imply the following life expectancies:

Life expectancy

at age 65

(years)
Male retiring in 2023 20.5
Female retiring in 2023 23.0
Male retiring in 2043 21.7
Female retiring in 2043 24.4

Life expectancy is based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2017 model with
an allowance for smoothing of recent mortality experience and long term rates of 1.25% p.a. for males and
1% p.a. for females.

Member data summary

Active members

Number Total earnings Average age
{£’000s p.a.) {unweighted}
Males 29 1,053 56
Females 55 1,867 56
Total 84 3,020 56
Deferred members
Number Deferred pensions Average age
(£’000s p.a.) (unweighted)
Males 44 106 57
Females 118 294 bb
Total 163 400 56
Pensioners
Number Pensions Average age
(£’000s p.a.) (unweighted)
Males 76 521 69
Females 211 979 69
Total 287 1,500 69
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22. Retirement benefits (continued)
Association

Present values of defined benefit obligation, fair value of assets and defined benefit

liability
31 March
2023
£'000
Fair value of plan assets 44,476
Present value of defined benefit obligation (47,154)
Defined benefit liability to be recognised (2,678)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation

Year ended
31 March
2023
£°000
Defined benefit obligation at start of period 67,728
Current service cost -
Expenses 62
Interest expense 1,860
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to scheme experience (2,283)
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in demographic
assumptions {1,160)
Actuarial {(gains) due to changes in financial
assumptions {16,982)
Benefits paid and expenses {2,071)
Defined benefit liability at the end of the period 47,154

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets

Year ended

31 March

2023

£’000

Fair value of plan assets at start of the period 64,027

Interest income 1,784
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts inciuded in interest income)

- {loss)/gain (21,244)
Contributions by the employer 1,980
Benefits paid and expenses (2,071)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 44,476

31 March
2022
£000

64,027
(67,728)

(3,701)

Year ended
31 March
2022

£'000

72,160

62
1,612
1,885

233

(5,234)
(2,990)

67,728

Year ended
31 March
2022

£000

62,371
1,323

1,350
1,973
(2,990)

64,027
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22. Retirement benefits (continued)

Defined benefit costs recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Period Period
from from
31 March 31 March
2022 to 2021 to
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£000 £000
Current service cost - -
Admin expenses 62 62
Net interest expense 76 189
Defined benefit costs recognised in Statement of
Comprehensive Income 138 251
Defined henefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Year Year
ended ended
31 March 31 March
2023 2022
£'000 £000
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest cost) — (loss)/gain (21,244) 1,350
Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities ~ gain/(loss) 2,283 (1,985)
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions underlying the
present value of the defined benefit obligation — gain/(foss) 1,160 (233)
Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying the
present value of the defined benefit obligation — gain 16,978 5,234
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income —
actuarial (loss)/gain (823) 4,366
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22. Retirement benefits {continued)

Fund allocation for employer’s calculated share of assets
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£'000 £000
Global Equity 1,174 12,660
Absoclute Return 606 2,936
Distressed Opportunities 1,368 2,295
Credit Relative Value 1,696 2,054
Alternative Risk Premia 257 2,645
Emerging Markets Debt 344 2,383
Risk Sharing 3,242 2,088
insurance Linked Securities 1,238 1,342
Property 1,852 1,659
Infrastructure 4,792 3,997
Private Debt 1,986 1,611
Opportunistic Hliquid Credit 1,966 2,122
High Yield 225 622
Opportunistic Credit 3 223
Cash 186 178
Corporate Bond Fund 58 4,047
Liquid Credit 2 410
Long Lease Property 1,491 1,845
Secured Income 2,974 3,420
Over 15 Year Gilts - 27
Liability Driven Investments 18,832 16,492
Net Current Assets 100 205
Current Hedging 84 (234)
Total Assets 44,476 64,027

The main financial assumptions used by the Scheme Actuary, TPT, in their FRS 102 calculations are as follows:

Assumptions as at 31 March 2023
% per annum
Discount rate 4.89%
Inflation (RPI) 3.2%
Inflation (CPI) 2.72%
Salary growth 3.72%
Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement 75% of
maximum
allowance

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2023 imply the following life expectancies:

Life expectancy

at age 65

{years)
Male retiring in 2023 20.5
Female retiring in 2023 23.0
Male retiring in 2043 21.7
Female retiring in 2043 24.4

Life expectancy is based on the Fund's VitaCurves with improvements in line with the CMI 2017 meodel with
an allowance for smoothing of recent mortality experience and long term rates of 1.25% p.a. for males and
1% p.a. for females.
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22. Retirement benefits {continued)

Member data summary

Active members

Number Total earnings Average age
{£'000s p.a.) {unweighted)
Males 26 932 56
Females 54 1,943 56
Total 80 2,875 56
Deferred members
Number Deferred pensions Average age
(E£'000s p.a.} (unweighted)
Males 42 102 57
Females 114 290 55
Total 156 392 56
Pensioners
Number Pensions Average age
(£'000s p.a.) (unweighted)
Males 74 517 69
Females 210 977 69
Total 284 1,494 69

Pension confributicns by Scheme — Group and Association

Defined contribution - SHAPS

There are 148 active members of the SHAPS DC scheme as at 31 March 2023 for the Group and 134 for
KEY only. The Group and KEY contribute 4.7% as an employer contribution. Total employer contributions
for the year were £257,278 (2022 - £253,617) for the Group and £234,369 (2022 - £233,701) for KEY only.
Included in the year end creditors balance is £41,556 (2022 - £40,643} for the Group and £37,255 {2022 -
£37,186} for KEY only in respect of pension contributions payable. This represents one month's
contributions as well as outstanding contributions for new members.

Defined contribution - Other

The Group also offers a defined contribution pension schema under SHAPS. Employer contributions for
the year were £16,961 (2022 - £18,795) for the Group and £15,823 (2022 - £17,421) for Key Housing
Association Limited only. Included in creditors as at 31 March 2023 is £2,228 (2022 - £2,568) in respect of
the defined contribution scheme for the group and £2,057 (2022 - £2,404) for Key Housing Association
Limited only. This represents one month's contribution. As at 31 March 2023 there were 21 (2022 - 24)
active members of the scheme employed by the Group and 18 (2022 - 22} by Key Housing Association
Limited.

Auto Enrolment

From 1 November 2013, eligible employees in KEY who were not active members of the SHAPS scheme
were automatically enrolled into the Flexible Retirement Plan with contribution levels meeting minimum
stafutory requirements. From 1 April 2014, eligible employees in Community Lifestyles were similaily
enrolled. Employer contributions for the year were £1,029,030 (2022- £960,330) for the Group and
£774,661 (2022 - £717,570) for KEY. As at the year-end there were £264 396 (2022 - £311,770) pension
contributions outstanding for the Group and £213,553 (2022 - £239,446) for KEY. There were 1,819 (2022
~ 1,693) active members for the Group as at 31 March 2023 and 1,481 (2022 - 1,324) for KEY only.

At the year-end £124 915 {2022 - £123,574) was included in the pension creditor in respect of the past
service deficit payment and pension management costs due to be paid at the year-end for the Group and
£124,846 (2022 - £121,360) for KEY only. There was also £2,012 (2022 - £1,965) in respect of the death
inservice element for the Group and £1,805 (2022 - £1,787) for KEY.
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22,

23.

Retirement benefits {continued}
Employer debt on withdrawal

Following a change in legislation in September 2005 there is a potential debt on the employer that could
be levied by the Trustee of the Scheme. The debt is due in the event of the employer ceasing to participate
in the Scheme or the Scheme winding up. The debt for the Scheme as a whole is calculated by comparing
the liabilities for the Scheme (calculated on a buyout basis i.e. the cost of securing benefits by purchasing
annuity policies from an insurer, plus an allowance for expenses) with the assets of the Scheme. If the
liabilities exceed assets there is a buy-out debt.

The leaving employer’s share of the buy-out debt is the proportion of the Scheme's liability attributable to
employment with the feaving employer compared to the total amount of the Scheme’s liabilities (relating
to employment with all the currently participating employers). The leaving employer's debt therefore
includes a share of any "orphan” liabilities in respect of previously participating employers. The amount of
the debt therefore depends on many factors including total Scheme liabilities, Scheme investment
performance, the liabilities in respect of current and former employees of the employer, financialconditions
at the time of the cessation event and the insurance buy-out market. The amounts of debt can therefore
be volatile over time,

The Association has been notified by TPT of the estimated employer debt on withdrawal from the Scheme
based on the financial position of the scheme as at 30 September 2022, As of this date the estimated
employer debt for the Asscciation was £17,916,383 (2021 - £28,845,037) and for Community Lifestyles
Limited was £289,649 (2021 - £476,200).

Review of historic benefit changes

We were notified in 2021 by the Trustee of the Scheme that it has performed a review of the changes
made to the Scheme’s benefits over the years and the result is that there is uncertainty surrounding some
of these changes. The Trustee is seeking clarification from the Court on these items and this process is
ongoing and with it being unlikely to be resclved before the end of 2024 at the earliest.

It is estimated that this could potentially increase the value of the full scheme liabilities by £27m. We note
that this estimate has been calculated as at 30 September 2022 on the Scheme’s Technical Provisions
basis. Until the court direction is received, it is unknown whether the full { if any ) increase in liabilities will
apply and therefore, in line with the prior year, no adjustment has been made in these financial statements
in respect of this.

Operating lease commitments — Consolidated

Land & Land &
Buiidings Other Buildings Other
Annual commitments expiring within the 2023 2023 2022 2022
following periods post year end: £ £ £ £
One year or less 322,926 60,379 286,747 73,675
Between two and five years 457,299 52,281 217,253 87,547
in five years or more 4,950 - 10,402 -
785,175 112,660 514,402 161,122
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23. Operating lease commitments — Association

Land & Land &
Buildings Other Buildings Other
Annual commitments expiring within the 2023 2022 2022
following periods post year end: £ £ £
One year or less 322,926 60,379 286,747 73,675
Between two and five years 457,299 52,281 217,253 87,547
in five years or more - 10,402 -
785,175 112,660 514,402 161,122
24a.  Share capital - Consolidated and Association
2023 2022
£ £
Shares of £1 each fully paid and issued at:
Brought forward at 1 April 274 287
Shares issued during the year 2 -
Shares cancelled during the year (51) (13)
Shares of £1 each fully paid at 31 March 225 274

The Association issued two (2022 - nify shares in the year. The shares have limited rights with no rights
to dividends, redemptions or winding up. Each shareholder has the right to vote at the General Meetings.

24b. Revenue reserves

The revenue reserve includes all current and prior year retained surpluses or deficits.
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25a. Net cash inflow from operating activities: Consolidated

Surplus for the year

Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets including loss on disposal of
components

Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals
increase/(decrease) in creditors

Decrease in debtors

Decrease/{increase) in stock

interest charge in respect of the defined benefit pension liability

Adjustments for investing or financing activities
Net proceeds from sate of tangible fixed assets
Interest payable

interest receivable

SHAPS past service deficit payment

Shares cancelled

Release of deferred Government Capital grants
Movement in market value of investments

Net cash inflow from operating activities

25h. Net cash inflow from operating activities: Association

Surplus for the year

Adjustments for non-cash items

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets including loss on disposal of
components

Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals

(Decrease) in creditors

{increase) in debtors

Decrease/{increase) in stock

interest charge in respect of the defined benefit pension liabitity

Adjustments for investing or financing activities
Net proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Interest payable

Interest receivable

SHAPS past service deficit payment

Shares cancelled

Release of deferred Government Capital Grant
Movement in market value of investments

Net cash inflow from operating activities

2023 2022
£ £
894,682 2,384,479
712,184 702,758
3,057 25,462
430,852 (824,190)
326,198 98,413
35,957 (48,053)
76,000 191,000
{2,199) (9,068)
20,572 37,566
{47,255) (13,730)
{1,935,417) (1,936,277)
(51) (13)
{6,625) {(6,625)
8,063 {20,743)
516,018 580,979
2023 2022
£ £
615,098 1,939,063
629,268 629,681
3,057 25,462
(18,651} (444,937)
(307,597) (75,410)
35,957 (48,053)
76,000 189,000
{2,199) (9,068)
20,572 37,566
{25,194) (7,987)
(1,922,163) (1,910,541)
{51) {13}
(6,625} (6,625)
8,063 (20,743)

(894,465)

297,585
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26. Capital commitments — Consolidated and Association

Contracted for but not provided for in the financial statements

Authorised by the Management Committee but not contracted for

27. Housing stock ~ Consolidated and Association

New build - mainstream
New build — supported
Rehabilitation - mainstream
Rehabilitation - supported

Registered accommodation:
Number of bed spaces

There are no new units under development for either year.

2023 2022
£ £
2023 2022
No of units No of units
103 106
588 585
22 22
713 713
2023 2022
No of units No of units

There were 3 units transferred from management mainstream to management supported in the year.
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28.

29,

Legislative provisions

The Association is incorporated under the Co-operative and Community Benefit Societies Act 2014 and
registered with the Financial Conduct Authority.

Related parties
Subsidiary undertakings

In August 1995, Key Housing Association set up a subsidiary company, Community 1.ifestyles Limited.
This company provides individualised home and community support services to adults with learning
difficulties, mainly in housing not provided by the Association. This is provided under contracts with local
authorities, mainly Glasgow City Council.

From August 1998 Community Lifestyles Limited became a registered charity and limited by guarantee.
it remains under the control of Key Housing Association Limited.

The transactions between the two entities during the year have consisted of net recharges totaling

£879,871 (2022 - £873,200} by Key Housing Association {o Community Lifestyles Limited for staff costs
and other overheads. There was also a fotal of £223 828 (2022 - £2186,350) of recharges from Community
Lifestyles Limited to Key MHousing Association Limited for staff costs and other overheads. At 31 March
2023, Community Lifestyles Limited owed Key Housing Association Limited £1,171,180 (2022 - £93,205)
in respect of sundry items and Glasgow City Council funding to be paid over. Included in the year end
creditors is £56,211 {2022 - £76,594) in respect of sundry items payable to Community Lifestyles Limited.

Members of the Board

During the year the Association had no (2022 - none) member of the Board who was also a tenant. The
tenancies of these members of the Board are on normal terms and the members cannot use their position
to their advantage. The total rent charged in the year relating to Board members who are tenants is £nil
(2022 - £nil). The total prepaid rent relating to Board members who are tenants included within creditors
at the year end is £nil (2022 - £nif)
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